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ndependent Audtors Report

To the Members of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiiities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act f%
Registered Office:

8 S R & Co (a partnership firm with Regisiration No. BA61223) converted intlo B SR & Co LLP (a 14th Floor, Ceniral B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limiled Liability Parinership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Weslem Express Highway. Goregaon (Easl), Mumbai - 400063

Page 1 of 12



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relate%
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safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shalil:

« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
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< provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

J'H-SN/%

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHMNR4316
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) () (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

@

(ii) (@)

(iii)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(b)

(@)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which ali property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year 2020-21. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to
employees and other parties during the year in respect of which the requisite information is as
below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to employees and other parties as bel_%
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(Continued)

Rupees in millions

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

M

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount during the year

Others 195.00
Employee Loans 0.33
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

Others 118.48
Employee Loans 0.24

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans provided during
the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, loans given to other parties is repayable on demand and in case
of employee loans (as per the policy of the Company loan is interest free) schedule of repayment
is stipulated. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan to other
parties during the year. The payment of principal and interest have been regular where
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loans to other parties :.

Rupees in millions

(iv)

Other Parties
Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan
- Repayable on demand 195.00
Total 195.00
Percentage of loans to the total loans 99.83%

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is respect of loans covered by the said
section. The Company does not have any guarantee given or security provided to which Section
185 of the Act is applicable. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the loan given, guarantee provided, securitie

Page 6 of 12




BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

given are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered as a Company engaged in business
of providing infrastructural facilities. According to the information and explanation given to us
the there is no investment made by the Company and accordingly Section 186 in respect of
investment is not applicable to the Company.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST
(Goods and Services Tax).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess
or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Rupees in Period to Forum where
statute the dues millions* which the dispute is pending
amount relates

Finance Act, 1994 | Service tax 7.53 | 2012-2013 to Customs Excise
2014-2015 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
New Delhi Property 90.91 | 2008-2009 to Delhi High Court
Municipal tax 2010-2011

Council Act, 1994

* Net of amounts paid including under protest

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any Iende/r(//
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(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

() (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities heid in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicabl/e{
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(b)

(©

d

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

()

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 1097.05 millions in the current financial year and
Rs 1446.35 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 2.4 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at
31 March 2022. Further, the Company's current assets exceed its current liabilities as at
31 March 2022 by Rs 711.86 millions.

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the
second wave of COVID-19 and consequent lockdowns in several states across the country.
Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an
improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Company had lesser impact
of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions. During the year, the Company has obtained working capital
loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March 2022. Based
on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its
obligations.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to t['lf/
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Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g ghatd

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHMNR4316
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Chanakya
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation ofﬁnanci,ab
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ERePIS=

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHMNR4316
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 17,965.92 18,146.26
Capital work-in-progress 3(¢) 10.95
Goodwill 3(d) 527.57 527.57
Other [ntangible assets 3(b) 0.39 0.56
Financial assets
(i} Others 5(a) 158.60 78.64
Other non-cuitent assets 8(a) 267.30 268.51
Total non-current assets 18,925.11 19,032.49
Current assets
[nventories 9 60.29 64.70
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 37.08 20.57
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 1] 1,081.42 3.69
(ii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 12 39.57 -
(111) Loans 4 117.93 -
(iv) Other financial assets 5(b) 3.36
Current tax assets (net) 7 6.29
Other current assets 8(b) 107.02 93.11
Total current assets 1,458.13 191.72
TOTAL ASSETS 20,383.24 19,224.21
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 574.23 574,23
Other equity 14 3,558.55 4,628.57
Total equity 4,132.78 5,202.80
Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15(a) 15,440.96 13,160.28
(i1} Other financial liabilities 16(a) 54.64 130.36
Provisions 17(a) 15.36
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 239.61
Total non- current liabilities 15,504.21 13.545.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 15(b) 239.61 159.11
(1i) Trade Payables 18
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enlerprises 19.75 13.55
b) total outstanding dues other than (ii) (a) above 154.34 106.93
(1) Other financial liabilities 16(b) 149.18 142.72
Provisions 17(b) 0.49 0.28
Other current liabilities 19 182.89 53.21
Total current liabilities 746.26 475.80
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 20,383.24 19,224.21
Significant accounting policies 1-2
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 140

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Acconniants
Finn Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

IS

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number:114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

~
I
{ Shankar

Director
DIN: 07967039

Anurad] i
Direcio

DIN: 07967035

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 Seplember 2022

‘a Private Limited

L2019PTC347362




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

Fagticulars Note 31 March 2022 March 2021
Revenue from operations 20 1,093.95 358.01
Other income 21 49.56 589.45
Total Income 1.143.51 947.46
Expenses

Consumption of food and beverages 22 117.83 44.05
Employee benefit expenses 23 302.43 267.94
Finance costs 24 1,311.20 1,246.86
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 215.67 291.61
Other expenses 26 512.20 254.18
Total expenses 2.459.33 2,104.64
Loss before tax (1,315.82) (1,157.18)
Tax expense

- Current tax = -

- Deferred tax charge / (credit) (241.22) (18.22)
Loss after tax (1,074.60) (1,138.96)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of post employment defined benefit plans 6.19 0.60
Income tax relating to these items (1.61) (0.16)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4.58 0.45
Total comprehensive income for the year (1.070.02) (1,138.51)
Earnings per equity share 28

Basic EPS (18.71) (20.69)
Diluted EPS (18.71) (20.69)
Significant accounting policies 1-2

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 1-40

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

g - pheis

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number:114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited
CIN: U55100DL2019PTC347362

Director
DIN: 07967035

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

f ke

Ravi Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Note No. Amount
As at 31 March 2020 536.10
Changes in equity share capital 13 38.13
As at 31 March 2021 574.23
Changes in equity share capital 13 -
As at 31 March 2022 574.23
B. Other Equity

Equity component of
Particulars Notes compound financial Securities pr tained earnings Total

instruments

As at 31 March 2020 876.59 4.824.00 (143.23) 5,557.37
Other comprehensive income = - 0.44 0.44
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 0.44 0.44
Profit for the year - - (1,138.96) (1,138.96)
Premiwn on shares issued during the year 13 = 209.72 - 209.72
As at 31 March 2021 13 876.59 5,033,72 {1,281.75) 4.628.57

Equity component of
Particulars Notes compound financial Securities pr d earnings Total

;Ilbll

As at 31 March 2021 876.59 5,033.72 (1,281.75) 4,628.57
Other comprehensive income - - 4.58 458
Total comprehensive income for the year 14 = - 4.58 4.58
Profit for the year - - (1,074.60) (1,074.60)
Premium on shares issued during the year 14 - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 14 876.59 5,033.72 (2,351.77) 3,558.55

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

d-H et

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number:114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited
CIN: U55100DL2019PTC347362

s

Ravi Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in pillions)

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the year (1,315.82) (1,157.18)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 215.67 291.61
Finance costs 1,311.20 1,246.86
Compensated absences required written back (3.29) {12.82)
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment (20.08) 0.01)
Net gain on account of modification in CCD terms - (569.74)
Net gain on account of modification in liability towards environmental clearance (2.51) -
Provision for doubtful debt 8.94 1.78
Unrealized foreign exchange differences (0.03) -
Interest income (16.14) (L.71)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 177.94 (201.20)
Working capital movements:
{Increase)/ Decrease in current and non-current loans 36.15 2.14
Decrease in inventories 4.4 15.74
{Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables {25.44) 43.97
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non-current assets (44.16) 1.61
(Increase)/ Decrease in current and non-current financial assets (1.08) 24.72
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 53.63 (105.46)
(Decrease)/ Increase in current and non-current financial fiabilities (142.65) 14.00
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities 129.69 (7.98)
Increase/ (Decrease) in current and non-current provisions 2.93 (14.48)
Cash generated [rom operations 191.42 (226.95)
Income taxes paid, net (2.34) (2.54)
Net eash flows generated from operating activities (A} 189.08 (229.49)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital work in progress (31.58) (15.47)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 20.08 -
Inter corporate deposit given to related parties, net (117.93) -
Interest received 10.70 1.46
Fixed/ restricted deposits with bank (placed)/ realized (118.49) (70.82)
Net cash lows used in investing activities (B) {237.22) {84.83)
Cash ftows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,000.00 180.45
Repayments of long-term borrowings (7.83) -
Proceeds from issuance of equity including securities premium - 247.85
Proceeds/ (repayments) from short-term borrowings (net) 35.93 155.75
Interest paid (902.23) (438.57)
Net cash flows generated from linancing activities (C) 1,125.87 145.48
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,077.73 (168.84)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 3.69 172.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1.081.42 3.69

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.85 0.94
Balance with banks

- in current account 115.72 2.75
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 963.85 -
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 11) 1,081.42 3.69

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Schloss Chanakya Private Limited
Firm Registration No' 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U55100DL2019PTC347362

o: Wlado

JH-S

Jaymin Sheth Anuraag B Ra\i Shankar
Partner Director Director

Membership Number 114583 DIN' 07967035 DIN: 07967039
Place: Mumbai Place Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 September 2022 Date: 28 September 2022 Date 28 Seplember 2022



SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

2.1

2.2

2.3

Company information

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (“the Company™) an Indian subsidiary of BSREP IIl India Ballet I Pte. Ltd., holding company and was
incorporated on 18 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by
acquiring Delhi hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of

Basis of preparation, critical accounting estimates and judgements, significant accounting policies and recent accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") as amended from time to time

Basis of preparation

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

= certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration is measured at fair value:
« assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell;

« defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value: and

« share-based payments

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management
to make judgements. estimates and assumptions. that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results
may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months which is based on
the nature of business of the Company. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year and

Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has estimated Useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating
condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. the Company reviews the Useful life of property.
plant and equipment and intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods. Refer Note 3 for further details

- Impairment testing:

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortisation are tested for impairment
periodically including when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less
than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell The
calculation involves use of significant estimates and assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net
margins used to calculate projected future cash flows. risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions. Refer Note 3 for
further details,

- Income Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realised. The
Company estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases. business plans, including
management’s expectations regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the
amount of deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation. developments in case laws and the potential outcomes
of tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in
adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and

Loss. Refer note 6 for further details

A




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

2.3

2.4

- Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future salary increases and mortality rates Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, Refer note 27 for further details

- Contingent liabilities:

Judgement is required to ascertain whether it is probable or not that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the legal claims included under contingent liabilities in note 35. The management assesses the probability of outflow for such items at

each balance sheet date to assess whether there is probability or not that an outflow will be required for such contingent liabilities

- Fair Value Measurement of Derivative and other Financial Instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques, This involves
significant judgements in the selection of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance
Sheet date and in identifying the most appropriate estimate of fair value when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
- Lease:
Critical Judgements in determining the Lease Term: Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of

a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to
extend or terminate the contract will be exercised In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term,

costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the
location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the
lease term reflects the current economic circumstances

Ciritical Judgements in determining the Discount ate: The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the

lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics

Going Concern
The Company has incurred a loss of Rs.1074.6 millions during the year ended 31 March 2022, has accumulated losses of Rs.2351.76
millions and net worth of Rs.4132 78 millions at 31 March 2022

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the second wave of COVID-19 and consequent
lockdowns in several states across the country. Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous
year, as this year the Company had lesser impact of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions

During the year, the Company has obtained working capital loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March
2022,

Based on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations

The Company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position
In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on current
estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of assets. The impact of Covid- 19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions as
the COVID-19 situation continues to evolve

In view of the above, the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due
in near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

2.5 Significant accounting policies

a)

b}

Revenue recognition:
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring

the goods or
services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services
is net of Indirect taxes, returns and discounts

Income from operations-

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation.
Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and
beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer

Space and Shop rentals: Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and office at the properties
These contracts for rentals are generally of short term in nature. Revenue is recognised in the period in which services are being rendered
Other Allied services: In relation to laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport transfers income and other allied
services, the revenue has been recognised by reference to the time of service rendered

Some contracts include multiple performance obligations, such as sale of food and beverages and room revenue. These are considered as
separate performance obligations as, the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own and the good or services are distinct within
the context of the contract. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices

A contract asset viz. Unbilled revenue is recognized in respect of those performance obligations where the control of the goods has been
transferred to the buyer. and only the act of invoicing is pending

A contract liability is recognised where the customer has paid in advance, but the services are yet to be rendered by the Company or the
payment exceeds the services rendered

The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time
value of money.

Interest: [nterest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method
Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established

Employee benefits:

Short term-Employment Benefits:

The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service, The accruals for
employee entitlements to benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represent the amounts which the Company has a present
obligation to pay as a result of the employee’s services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been calculated at
undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at the Balance Sheet date

Defined contribution plan:

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are
recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. The contributions are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available,

Defined benefit plans:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value
of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the
caleulation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in Other Comprehensive Income and reflected in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the

Statement of Profit and an



SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

¢)

d)

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave
subject to certain limits for future encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses,

if any

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties
and non-refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for making them operational
for their intended use. Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included if there is an obligation to restore it.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than freehold fand and properties under
construction) Jess their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method. as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act. 2013 except in respect of the following categories of assets. in whose case the life of the assets had been re-assessed as
under based on technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers™ warranties and maintenance support, etc

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule II (in years) |Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)
Buildings 60 years 60 years

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 years to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years

Office equipments 5 years Same as Schedule 11

Computers 3 years Same as Schedule I

Data processing units 6 years Same as Schedule 11

Vehicles 6 years Same as Schedule 11

Freehold land is not depreciated. The assets’ useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any
changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment recognised as
of March 18, 2019 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use and are
carried at cost determined as aforesaid

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and Goodwill
directly attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication

Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any

that the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired The estimated useful life used for amortising intangible assets is as under
Class of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Computer Software 6 years

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
assel. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

cartying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised

?or;transition to Ind AS. the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of March 18.

2019 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date,




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

e)

g)

h)

Leases
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the

company. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

» fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

» variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

= amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

= payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for
feases in the company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date Jess any lease incentives received

« any initial direct costs, and

* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less

Impairment of assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or

more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting period

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is [ndian Rupee.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or
loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part
of the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future is considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation

Foreign exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses)

Inventories
Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted Average basis) or net

realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward
freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of

purchase

Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and

deferred tax

are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or
directly in equity.

in which.case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity. respectively




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

»

k)

Current Tax :
Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for current income tax is made for

the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances. deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis

Deferred Tax :

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except
when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives from a contract, legislation

or other operation of law, or constructive because the Company created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain
responsibilities. To record such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision and the indicated time range of the
outflow of economic benefits are the best estimate (most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Non-current provisions are discounted for
giving effect to time value of money, if material

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date

Borrowing cost
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are

capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year adjusting the bonus element for all the reported period arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including
potential equity shares on compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax
as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share. Ordinary shares that will be issued
upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the
contract is entered into.

Dividend:
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared. being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or
before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting perio/d‘(




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022

m)

Financial assets

(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

* those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income

(ii) Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase
or sale the financial asset

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest

-Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.

+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCL Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses. interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit and loss

« Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criterta for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income

-Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company's management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the company’s right to receive payments is established

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit
and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI
debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables

v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

« The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
+ Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to
one or more recipients

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial %
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n)

0)

P)

q)

r)

vi) Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income

on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as part of other income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance)

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of

default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown

within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred as excess of the-

» consideration transferred:;

» amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

» acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other
cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at
the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate

New Standards or Other Amendments Issued but not yet Effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time

On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022. applicable from Apnl 1, 2022,
Key amendments are as below:

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment
The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the

profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that related

directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,

plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

None of the amendments notified by MCA which are applicable from April 1, 2022 are expected to have any material impact on the financia
statements of the Company:

' nA
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 10 the financial statements for the neriod ended 31 March 2022 {Cominued)

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Sa}

5(ly)

N

~

Financial assei- Current loans

Particulars

31 March 2022

3t Marchzun |

Inier corporsile deposi given 1o related panics

Loans or advances o related parties:

117.93

117.93

As al 31 Murch 2023

As at 31 Murch 2021

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan or
adyance in the nature
of loan outstanding

% of total Loans and
Advances in the nature of
loans

At of foun or
advance in the nature of
Ioan outstanding

%% of the total Loans and
Advances in the nature of
loans

Related Parties *

117.93

110%

* Related partics with common directots:

Note-

Loans includes Rs. 117 93 millions (Previous y car : Rs NIL) due from companies in which any dircctor is a director or a member delails of which are st out below:

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Financial asset- Others

Non Current

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Margin money deposils

Bank dcposits with maturity of more than 12 months
Sccurity deposits

Considered good- Unsecured

Note-

71.26 -
7848 70.82
K.86 7.82
158.60 78.64

(i) Sccurity deposits are primanily on account of utility deposils and renlal agreements Security deposits given 1o related partics amounts to Nil
(u) Out of total bank deposits. fixed deposit amounting to Rs 70 82 Mn represents fixed deposits made with banh for a period of 5 years which is given as a guarantec to MOEF for the liability incurred

towards cmvironmental clearance

Current

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

|

To related pariics (Refer Note 36}

Inlerest receivable .56 -
To uther than related parties:
Sccurity deposits
Considered good- Unsccured - 0.96
Advances 1o employ ces 0.24 0.20
Interest accried on deposits 539 0.50
Reccivable from HLV Limited - 170
619 336,
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars 31 March 2022 3 Marchzont |
Tt components of deferred tax balances arc as follows
(A) Deferred tax assets
Arising on account of iming differences mi:
Provision for employce benefits 237 2.56
Borrowings 91.40 89.15
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss (Refer nole below) 418.02 210.62
Others 2.98 0.62
514.77 302.95
(B) Deferred tax liahility
Arising on acconm of tintng differences in:
Compulsorily Comertible Debentures 27244 359.04
Excess of depreciation / amortisation on property . plant and 121,05 61.86
cquipment under income tax laws over depreciation / amortisation
provided in the books
Recognition of liabilitics at fair value 0.58 0.96
Intangible assels including Goodwill 120.69 120.71
514.77 542.56
Deferred tax assets/(liabilitics) (net) - {A)-(B) s (235.61)

Note:

In the absence of reasonable certainty. Deferred Tax Asset on account of unabsorbed depreciation / business loss has been recognised to the extent it can be realised against reversal of deferred tax habihny

Current tax asscts

Particulars

31 March 2022 .[

31 Matrch 2021

Advance fax and tax deducled al source (net of prontzionst

8.63

6.29

863

629




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

8(a)

8(b)

©

Other Assets

Non-Current

Particulars 31 March 2622 31 Murch 2023

Tt ither than related parties

Capital advances 2.04 .

Prepaid cxpenses 429 754

Balances with governmciv authoriiies * 260.97 260.97
267.30 268.51

— =090 b8l

* Balance with government authoritics represents advance given to NDMC for FAR and ZAAR matter which is ongoing before the court. (Refer Note 35)

Current

Particulars | 31 Marcn20m 31 Maret |
To related parties (Refer Nole 36)

Reeeivable against settlement in rclation with business acquisition - 22,99
Reimbursement receivable from related partics 6.02 053
Advance against management fees - 18.65

Ta other than related parties:

Advance (o suppliers 9.50 8.51
Prepaid expenses 19.98 16.40
Insurance claim receivables 0.24 -
Balances with government authorities 2504 19.49
Unbilled rex cnue 46.14 654
107.02 93.11
Inventories
aviafeil of cint ie N inluclwever ox fenerd
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Food and beverages 35.54 3810
Stores and operating supplies 24.75 26.60
), "='ﬂ 64,70

Nole- Imentory written off during the ycar amounts 1o Rs Nil (PY amount: Nil)

Trade reccivables

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 |
Reccivables from telned partics (Refer Noge 76y 0.22 -
Trade receivables- other than related parties 46.61 22.95

Less: Loss allowance 12.38%)

Total reccivables




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

10 Trade receivables (Continued)

As it 31 March 2022

Dutstanding for fallowing periods from date of tranaction

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 ) More than 3 Total
manths —_— 1-2 years 2-3 years - AHA

{nh Unlispuatd Trode Receivabides - heved pusad AT - - - - 3708
(1) Und d Trade les —which have increase 1n credit sk - - . - - =
(311} Undisputed Trade recetvable — credit impaired 069 906 - - - 973
(1v) Dispuled Trade receivables - considered good - - - - 3 -

(1) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase i credit nsk - - N . = .
Less provision for doubtful debts FU (R - - - 4875}
Total 37,08 - - - - JT.I‘!‘

As at 31 March 2021

Outstanding for follaning periuds From date of tramaction

Particulars Less than 6 6 montha - 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
monthy Aear < 2 Aears

(0 Vindispated Trade Reoarvalies - Sered g 1355 702 : 3 = RTE
(1} Undi d Trade bles — which have merease  eredil nsk - - . . - -
{(u2) Undisputed Trade receivable — credil impaired - 238 . - - 238
(v Disputed Trade recervables - considered good - - . . - P’

{1 ) Disputed Trade recervables — which have sigmificant increase in credit nsk - - . . - &
Less provision for doubUul debts - 0 - - 234y
Total 13.55 - - - 7

——




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the neriod ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless vtherwise stated)

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 1.85 0.94
Balances wilh banhs
= 1n curreni accounts 115.72 2,78
- in deposil accounts with original maturily of tess than 3 months 963.45 -
1.081.42 3
L S
Nole:

Cash and bank balances arc denominated and held in Indian Rupees and the balance with banks mentioned above is of unresiricied nature

12 Bank balances ather than cash and cash cquivalents

Particulan [ SiMorcn2022 | 3iMamch2on |
Other bank balances
- Fixed deposils with matuni(y of less than 12 months 39.57 -
3957 -

13 Equity Share Capiial

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
65.500.000 (Previous Ycar: 65.500 000) cquits shares of Rs 10 cach 655.00 655.00
655.00 655.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
57,423,076 (Previous Year: 57.423.076) equity shares of Rs 10 cach. fully paid up 574.23 574.23
574.23 574,23
a R of shares ding a1 the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
" 4 02 S d
Particular 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of sharcs Amount Nu. of shares Amipant
Al the beginning of the s car 5,74,23,076 574.23 5,36,10,000 536.10
Shares issucd during the ycar - - IB15076 3813
At the end of the year 5,74,23,0%6 574.23 574,23,076 57423

Dunng the previous year. the company had issued 3 813,076 sharcs 1o BSREP 11 India Ballet [ Pie Lid. the holding company

1)  Rights, prefercace and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares Accordingly. all equity shares ranh cqually with regard to dividends and sharc i the Company 's residual assets The cquily shares are entutled lo recence
dividend as declared from time Lo time, The voting rights of an cquity sharcholder ou a poll (not show of hands) are in proportion 1o ils share of the paid-up equily capilal of the Company

On winding up of the Company.. the holders of cquity shares will be entitled 1o receive the residual asscls of the Company

¢)  Shares held by holding company / ultimate holding company

31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars
No, of sharcs Amount No. of shares Amount
Equify shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up
BSREP Il India Ballet 1 Pic. Lid . holding company 5,74,23,075 574.23 5,74,23,075 574.23
BSREP I Indha Ballet Pie Lid , ulumate holding compan 1 0.00 1 0.00
5.74.23.076 574.23 5.74.23.076 574.23

d)  Delails of sharcs held by sharcholders holding morce than 5% of the apgregate shares in the Company

31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulurs
No. uf Shires e of Holding| No, of Shares % of Hulling|
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up
BSREP I India Ballet | Pte Lud 5,74.23.078 09, 909908% £,74,23,078 U0, 990908
57423075 19‘9'1957‘2% ﬁ.?&i‘_&l?s 99.999998%

¢) Company has nol issued any bonus shares. shares for consideration other than cash and ncither bought bach any shares from the date of incorporation

f}  Disclosure of Sharchelding of Promoters

Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 Chanpe in % of Holding

Promolers No. of shares % of Hokding| No. of shares % of Hulling

BSREP 111 India Ballet 1 Pe. Lid 5.74.23,075 W AR 5,74.23,075 PR 0.0

BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Lid | 0O 2 o 1 DLODTHIEY 000t
5,74.23.076 D THLAHMARNI s 57423076 100.000000% .00

14 Other cquity

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2071
Securities premium account:
Ad the commencemaent of the vear 5.033.72 4.824.00
Add Premm on shares issued during the year - 209.72
At the end of the year 5,033.22 503172
Retained carnings:
Al Lhe commencement of the ycar (1,281.74) (143.22)
Add- Profit / {Loss) for the yecar (1,074.60) {1,138.97)
Add: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) 4.58 045
At the end of the year {2,351.76] (1,281.74)
Equity component of compound financial instruments
At the commencement of the y car 876.59 876.59
Add: Additions for the x car - -
At the end of the year 876.59 876.59
Total Jrﬂ 56 LGN ST
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise staled)
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15(a)

15(b)

(a)

(b)

©

(d;

()

(@)

(L]

{c)

Note:

Sccurities premium:

Securilies premium represents the premium charged to the sharcholders af the time of issuanice of cquity shares The sceurities premium can be ulilised based on the relevant requirements of the Companics
Act. 2013

Relained carnings:
Retained carnings represenls accumulated carnings of the Company available for distribution to sharcholders as per the provisions of the Companics Act. 2013

Equity component of compoun financial instruments
This represents cquity portion of Compulsorily Comnertible Debentures (CCDs). net of tax. Refer note 15(b) for details on terms of the instrument

Borrowings
Non-Currenl Borrowings
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured:
Term loans:
- From banks
Rupee term loan (Refer note A) 9,176,714 9,184.56
Less : Amount disclosed under other current borrowmgs {Refer note A(d)} (47.93) {3.36)
9,128.81 9,181.20
Working capual term loan (Refer notc B) 2000, 10
Less : Amount disclosed under other current borrowings {Refer note B(c}} - -
2,000.00 -
Unsccured:
Liability component of compound financial instruments (Refer note Cy 4312.15 3,979.08
431215 3,979.08
!&! #I.I.'}ﬁ L I60.28
Current Borrowings
Particulars ] 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Secured:
Short Term Line Credit (Refer note D) 191.68 155,75
Current maturities of long-term borrawings (refer note 15(a)) 4793 3.36
239.61 159.11

The amouni represents working capilal limil drawn by the company which is repay able on demand

Noftes:

Term lnan from Bank
The lender has granted a term loan facility under the Common Facilits Agreement dated 30 Scptember 2019 1o the Company and three co-borrowers i c. Schloss Chennai Private Limiled. Schloss Udaipur

Private Limited and Schloss Bangalore Private Limiled. for a total amounting 1o Rs 27.500 00 millions for the purpose of acquisition and refurbishment of the hotel property acquired by cach of the three co
borrowers and the Company 's holel property in Delhi. The door to door fenure of the loan is |15 years including moratorium of onc ycar. The loan is repayable in 56 quarterly structured installments
beginning 31 December 2020, The loan carries interest rate linked to lender's one ycar marginal cost of lunds based lending rate ("MCLR™). subjec! (o annual rescl. plus spread ranging from ¢ 80% 1o
1.60% based on the external credil rating The Company has avaulable faciliy of Rs 9,250 00 millions (including undrawn amount of Rs 418 00 millions (March 2021: Rs 418 00 millions) and ratc of
interest as on 31 March 2022 is 7 80% (March 2021: 7 80% p a)

Primary security:
The total term Joan under the said agrcement is sccured against assets of the Compan . other co-borroncrs and obligators i ¢ Schloss HMA Private Limited and Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited under the

Commen Facility Agreement. interalia. including;
i Exclusive charge on the total assets (ncluding mortgage of property and / or mortgage of leaschold rights in case of Ieaschold property. iff any) (present & future)

i Exclusive charge on brand *Lecla” pertaining Lo Hotels. other intangibles. Goodwill. Intelleciual Property (IP). uncalled capital (present and future)
. Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including but not limited to Escrow account {present & future)

1v First charge on the total current assets (present and future)

s Hy pothecation of cash flows

Comporalc guaranice:
i1 of Schloss HMA Privale Limited. a fellow subsidiany
ii) of Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited. a fellow subsidiary

Other sccurity:

i} Pledpe of 30% shares of the Company held by BSREP I11 India Balle | Pte. Lid . Holdmg company. in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for the eatire (erm loan exposurc.

ii) A guarantce of BSREP 111 India Ballet Pic, Limited. ultimate Holding compan; , situated at Singapore uplo an amount of Rs 3 000 millions. enforceable at Singapore tonards meeling the shortfall in debt
service obhyations till 30 March 2022

) A guarantee of BSREP [11 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited . ulumate Holding company of sister company . siuated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs 3.000 millions. cnforccable at Dubai towards
meeting the shortfall in debl seryvice obligalions from 31 March 2022

iv} Mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limiled

Current maluritics of long-term borrowings arc classificd as other current habilities

Modification in facility terms:
Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of (esting of financial covenants till the end of FY 2022-23 with testing to be performed on the audited balance sheet as at 31 March

2024 onwards

Moratorium on infcrest:

Compam has availed the moratorium facility for mtcrest on Lerm loan from the month of March to August. 2020 which has been further capitalised into term loan wee [ 01 October 2020 Accordingly
interest outstanding till 31 August 2020 amounting Lo Rs 390 26 millions (Previous ycar- Rs 397.6 millions) has been capilalized in tcrm loan reported abose

The lender has granted a Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guarantced Emergency Credut Line 3.0 (GECL 3.0) faciliy of Rs. 2000 millions (Previous Year: Nil) on 9 December, 2021 10
the Company o augement net working capilal. requirements 1o meel operalional habilitics. The door (o door tenurc of the loan is 6 years including moratorium of principal of two yecars The loan is
repayable in 48 quarterly struciured nstallments beginning December 2023 The loan carries mnterest rale linked (o lender's 51x months margunal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"). plus 1%

subject 1o annual resel

Primary security:
Soco-id\chargc on sceurities mentioned in A(a) above

Other security:
i) Pledgciof 30% shares of the Company held by BSREP I11 India Ballet J Pic. Ltd . Holding company. in favour of security trustce (or the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure

ity Extention of mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited

Current maturitics of long-term borrowings are classified as short term borm\\::;}\l
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17(a)

10.50% unsecured compulsorily conscrtible debentures

Comversion lerms:

At the end of the tenure (15 vears). cach Compulsorils Comertible Debentures (“CCD"} of face value of Rs 100 cach will be conseried into | equity share of face value af Rs 10 cach CCD can be
comerled during the tenure of CCD at the option of Lhe CCD holders Provided that the CCDs shall aulomatically stand comerted inlo equify shares upon:

(a) Commencement of the corporate insolency resalution process of the Company or. any of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 Scptember 2019 exceuted with the lender: or
(b Conversion of loan inlo cquity of the Company or amy or all of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement unless otherwisc instrucled by the lender as per the Common Facilits Agreement
wlho have provided the foans ar who may have acceded to the Mnancing documents

During the year ended 31 March 2021. the terms of the CCD hase been amended to provide Lhe oplion to the tssuer to convert the CCD during the tenure of the CCD Howeser Lhe issuer does nol expect Lo
comeri the said instrument before Uie eapiry of its term of 15 ycars at the end of which it should stand automalically converted subject (o the above

Restriction on payment of inferest on CCDs:

As per terms of the Common Facility Agreement referred at clause 5(A) above. interest on the CCDs shall be due bul cannot be paid by the Company uniil all the obligations under Common Faciliy
Agreement are completed or seized

Short Term Credit Line
The lender has granied a working capital facility as per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 to the Company and three co-borrowers i ¢. Schloss Chennai Private Limuled Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited. for a total amounting to Rs 500 60 milions ¢ March 2021° 10600 millions) to mect the working capital requirement and it is repay able on demand  The loan carrics interest

rate nked Lo lender's one y car marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), subject lo manthly reset The rale of interest as on 31 March 2022 is 7.95% (March 2021: 7 95%pa)

Primary sccurify:

Exclusive first charge on the entire current assels (Present and Future) of the Borrower and Schloss HMA Privalc Limited (hote! management entily )

Collateral security:

(i) Exlension of exclusive charye on the entire fied assels (including mortgage of property and/or morigage of lease hold rights in case of leasc hold property, il any ) of the borrower

(u) Extension of exclusive charge on all cash flows of the borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity ). related to project (including bul nat limited to ESCROW account and Debl
Service Reserve Accounts) opencd/to be opened with lender

(w1} Extcnsion of mortgage on the land situaled at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limiled

(iv) Extension of cxclusis ¢ charge on braud Leela. other intangibles. goodwill. TP relating o the 4 SPVs owned by Schloss HMA Private Limited

(1) Exlension of pledge of 30% sharcs of (i) Schloss Chanakya Private Limted held by BSREP 1l India Ballet | Pie Ltd (1) Schloss Udaipur Private Limited held by BSREP 11l india Ballet I Pe. Lid
(i) Schloss Bangalore Privale Limited held by BSREP HI India Ballet 111 Ple. Lid (iv) Schloss Chennai Private Limited BSREP I1I India Rallet IV Ple Lid in favour of the lender for the entire exposure
(TL+WC)

Comorate guarantee:

i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited. a [ellow subsidiary

ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limiled. a ellow subsidiary

i} A guarantce of BSREP L1 India Ballet Pte. Limited. ultimate Holding company _ siluated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs. 3.000 millions. enforceable at Singapore towards meeling the shortfall in debt
senvice obligations (ill 30 March 2022

iiii) A guaranice of BSREP 11 India Ballel Holdings (DIFC) Limited . ulimate Holding company of sister company . situaled at Dubai upto an amount of Rs 3.000 millions, enforceable at Dubai towards
mectine the shortfall in debt service oblieations from 31 March 2022

Other financial liabilitics
Non-Current
Particulars [ 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade / security depasits 045 -
Liability towards vendor scitlement (Refer note below) - 66.77
Liability towards environmemal clearance (Refer note 31) 48.08 57.48
Statutory dues payable
- Property tax (Refer Note 35) 6.11 (81}
54.64 130.36
Current
Particulars A1 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021 J
Trade / securily. deposils 1.05 0,65
Liabiliy towards vendor setilement (Refer nole below) - 92.50
Emplos ce ducs payable 29.87 8.30
[nterest Accrued but not duc on Borrowings 75.90 -
Liability towards environmental clearance (Refer note 31) 12.36 41.27
149.18 142.72
Note:

Liability towards vendor settement pertained to liabiliy of HLY Limited with regards (o dispute with a vendor wherein arbitration proceeding was imtiated against HLV
Limiled and the arbilration award was issucd in favour of vendor. The award was challenged by HLV Limited in the Hon'ble high court of Delhi which was dismissed. During
the year this liability was admitted and paid ofT.

The table below gives information about may ement 1n provision for contingency

Particulars I 3 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Opening balance 159.27 142.59
Add: Interest for the period 35.28 16.68
Less: Payments made during the period (194.52) -
Closing balance - 159,27
Privisions

Non-Current

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 l

Provision for enplosee benefits:
- Compensaled absences
= Gratuity (Reler note 27)
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17(b} Current
Particulars 31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021 I
Provision for cniployee benefits:
- Gratuity (Refer notc 27) 021 0.07
- Compensaled obsences 0.28 0.20
0.49 0,28
=L
18 Trade payables
Partleulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Total ontstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer nole below) 19.75 13.55
- Totat outstanding ducs of creditors other (han micro enterprises and small enlerprises
' - Related parties (Refer Nole 36) 67.11 -
- Other vendor payables 52.86 7649
- Acerual expenses and others 34.37 30.45
174.09 120.49
Ducs of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal amouni due (0 suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 19.75 13.55
remaining unpaid as at ycar cnd
Interest due (o supplicrs regisicred under the MSMED Act and remaining 0.00 -
unpaid as al year end
Principal amounts paid 1o supplicrs registered under the MSMED Act, 5.51 -
beyond the appointed day during the ycar
lnterest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED AcL lo suppliers - -
|registered under the MSMED Act beyond the appointed day during the
Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act, lo suppliers registcred - -
under the MSMED Acl. beyond the appointed day during the y car
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act 017 -
for payments alrcady made
Further interest remaining duc and payable lor earlier vears - -

The management has identificd enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Ail
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Trade payables (Continucd)

As at 3 March 2022

Cutstanding far fellaning periods from date of tramaction

Particulars Acerued expenses o on 1 yeor 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
and nihers
) MAME - [T - 1475
(u) Others 3437 11997 - - 13434
() Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
() Dispulted ducs - Others - . - -
Total 387 139.72 - - 17000
it
Axal 31 March 2021
Cubvtanding far following periods from date of iransaction
Lk Accrued expenses Leas than 1 year 1-2)years 2-3 yeary More than 3 years Total
and others N 2
) MSKI - 1h 55 - - 135
(i) Others 3045 7143 J08 - 106 93
Qu) Disputed dues - MSME - - - .
(1v) Disputed dues - Others - - - -
Total 3,45 H4.9% S.05 - 120,49
. e,

Qeher curron liabilithes
Particulars [ 3iMarchzo22 [ 31 March20n |
Advance [rom customers 69.53 46.20
Statulory dues pavable

- Tax deducted at source and equalisation levy 89.07 3.29

= Cigioeds and sevvioe o - -

= Provident fund 2.20 2.16

= Emplovces atite msianes 0.09 0.09

- Goods and services tax 18.3% -

- Value added 18x 3.61 1.46

- Labour welfare fund

EEJ“ 53.10
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20 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Revenue from contract with customers:
(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue

(b) Sale of services:
Room income
Income from rental and related services
Other allied services (laundry income. health club income, airport transfers, membership etc.)

Other operating revenue
Total revenue from operations

519.64 202.72
534.32 142.63
2.80 2,34
37.19 10.02
574.31 154.99

- 0.29
1,093.95 358.01

The entire revenue of the Company is generated in India. The disaggregation of revenue is presented above.

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the performance

obligation is over/ services delivered, Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is

satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/ restaurant/ banquets. Revenue is recognized once the performance

obligation is met i.e, on room stay/ sale of food and beverage/ provision of banquet services/ other allied services. The Company has recorded

revenue of Rs. 29.95 millions against opening balance of contract liabilities

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers

Contract assets
- Unbilled revenue

21 Other income

69.53

46.14

46,20

6.54

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortized cost:

- fixed deposits

- Intercorporate Deposit

- others

Compensated absences written back (Refer note 27)

Net foreign exchange differences

Net gain on account of exti ish /modification in CCD terms*

Net gain on account of modification in liability towards environmental clearance
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Other income

13.53 1.47
1.99 =
0.63 0.24
3.29 12.82
0.11 0.06

- 569.74
2,51 -

20.08 0.01
7.42 5.11

49.56 589.45

*During the year ended 31 March 2021 on request of the Company. the CCD holder had waived the interest till 31 March 2021. Based on the crteria
specified under Ind-AS 109, this had been accounted for as an ‘extinguishment’ of the liability. The amount represents gain on extinguishment to the

extent of Rs. 569.74 million

22 Consumption of food and beverages

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Opening balance
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the period

38.10 49.84
115.27 32.31
153.37 82.15

35.54 38.10
117,83 44.05
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23

24

25

26

Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund, employees state insurance and labour welfare fund
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 27)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

262,27 238.36
12.61 11.01
2.93 5.30
24.62 13.27
302.43 267.94

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest expense on:
- Term loan *
- Unwinding of provision and liability
- Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Other borrowing costs (tern loan upfront fee, processing fee. advisory fee etc.)

* Includes interest on working capital term loan of Rs. 42.69 millions

Depreciation and amortisation

848.27 776.35
43.29 33.49
417.49 431.53
2.15 5.49
1,311.20 1,246.86

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

215.48 291.34
0.19 0.27
215.67 291.61

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Consumption of stores and operating supplies
Power and fuel

Repairs and maintenance

- buildings

- plant and machinery

- others

Insurance

Communication

Travelling and conveyance
Guest transport

Printing and stationery
Reservation fees

Sales and credit card commission
Provision for doubtful debt
Business promotion
Management fees

Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditor’s (Refer note below)
Rates and taxes

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Pavment to auditor’s (excluding taxes)

41.84 14.69
87.75 53.75
14.23 7.17
16.12 10.00
21.42 15.95

7.55 7.54
3.05 2.81
4.20 1.7
4.23 0.76
0.38 0.17
4.06 3.18
33.20 7.50
8.94 1.78
46.02 29.63
53.99 0.96
22.92 11.73
1.70 1.50
119,84 75.93
0.38 0.20
20.38 7.22
512.20 254,18

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Statutory audit fees
Reimbursement of expenses

1.7¢

1.50

1.70
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SCHLOSS CHAMAK YA PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles 10 the finencal stalemenls for the penod ended 31 March 2022 (Contmued)
(ATl amounts 1n INR millons unless ctharwse staled)
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Noles lo the hnancial slatemenls for (he penod ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(Allamounts in INR milons unless otherwse staied)
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Nofes 1o the hnencial stalaments fo) the period ended 31 March 2022 (Conlmusd)
(Allamounts i INA mdons unless otnerwse staled)
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued}
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated}

SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2022 (Continucd)

36 Related party disclosures
(a) Names of related partics

(i) Ultimate Holding company
BSREP 11 India Ballet Ple Lid

{il) Holding company
BSREP 11T India Ballet 1 Pte Ltd

(lif) Fellow subsidiarics
Schloss HMA Private Lamuled (11l 30 March 2022)
Schloss Bangalore Pnvate Limited (Tall 30 March 2022)
Schloss Chennar Private Limuted (T1ll 30 March 2022)
Schloss Udaipur Pnvale Limited (111l 30 March 2022)
Schioss Gandhinagar Pnvate Linuled (T1fl 30 March 2022)
Leela Palaces and Resorts Lumuted (T1ll 30 March 2022)

{iv) Key managerial personnel
Mr Lows Sailer, General Manager (Tull 13 Augusl 2020)
Mr Anupam Das Gupla General Manager {w e £ 11 Januany 2021)
Mr K M Bansal, [ inanciat Controller (Tilf 12 October 2021)
Mr Vnavpal Singh Financial Controller (w ¢ I'1 November 2021)

() Other related parties
Tulst Palace Resort Private Lumuted (w ¢ [3 Ma 2021)
Schloss IIMA Private I imited (w e [ 31 March 2022)
Schloss Banpalore Prvate Limited (w e [3] Murch 2022)
Schless Chennai Private Linuled (w e 3] March 2022)
Schloss Udnipur Pnvate Lunited (w ¢ 31 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinapar Pnvale Limited (w ¢ ['31 March 2022)
Leela Palaces and Resorts Linuted (w ¢ [31 March 2022)

(b) Transactions during the y car/period {Rupees in millions)

T For the year ended 31 March _ For the year ended 31
—" 022 March 2021

Management fecs expensc
Schloss HIMA Private Limited 53.99 .96

Reimbursement of expenses paid (o / {received from)
Schloss [TMA Private Limited 8.08 7,68
Schloss Bangalore Private Lumuled 0.14 -
Schloss Udurpur Pnvate Limited (0.28) -

Schloss Chennar Private Limited (1.02) -
0.35) =

Schloss Grandhinagar Privale Lunited

Tulss Palace Resort Private Jimuted (0.06) .
Inferest on 10.50% ily convertible

BSREP IIl India Ballel 1 Pte Lid 562.80 -
Infer corporate deposil given

Schloss Bangalore Prvate Limiled 195.00 -
Inter corporate deposit received

Schioss Udaipur Privale Limited 145.00 39.00
Schioss Chennat Prvate Linuted 117.00 -
Schloss TIMA Prisate Linuted 145.00 -
Inter corporate deposit seltlement

Schloss Udaipur Privalte Linuted 145.00 39.00
Schloss Bangalore Privale Limited 77.06

Schloss Chennat Pnvale Linuted 117.00 -
Schloss HMA Private Limuted 185.00 -
Interest expense/(income) on inler corporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Linuted 9.21 0.32
Schloss Chenna Prvate Linuted 10.76 -
Schloss FIMA Private Ljmuted 13.2% -
Schloss Bangalore Private Lunied 1,99) N
Sectilement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Bangalore Pnvale Limuted - 22.99
Issuance of right issuc shares (including securitics premium)

BSREP 11 India Ballet [ Ple 1.1d - 247 8BS
Manegerial remuncration *

Mr Lows Sailer - 17.41
M1 K M Bansal 3.96 3.15
Mr Anupam Das Gupla 11.91 2.64
Mr Vyaypal Singh 092 -

* Managenal remuneration exchudes prosision for gratuuty and compensated absences, smee Lhese are provided on the basts of un acluunal vahuation for the Company as a whole

o




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

36 Related party disclosures (Continued)

(¢) Outstanding balances (Rupees in millions)
" As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payables (Including accruals)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 67.13 1.60

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.01 "

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.14 -

Advance against management fee

Schloss HMA Private Limited - 18.65
Trade receivable

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 0.22 w
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 0.01 “

Reimbursement receivable
Schloss HMA Private Limited 6.02 0.53

Inter corporate deposit given
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 117.94 -

Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited * 22.99

Interest Receivable on Inter corporate deposit
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.55 -

Interest accrued but not due on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
BSREP 11I India Ballet I Pte. Ltd. 478.38 -

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures (at Instrument's issue value)
BSREP [1I India Ballet I Pte. Ltd. 5,360.00 5,360.00

(d) Corporate guarantee
Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the ultimate holding company i.e. BSREP III India Ballet Pte Ltd. have given corporate guarantee
and fellow subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan facility availed by the company.

{e) Management believes the Company's transactions with related parties are at arms length,
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